


 
 
Memorandum 
 
TO:  Chairman Dixon and Members of the Plan Commission 
 
FROM: Catherine Czerniak, Director of Community Development 
 
DATE: May 8, 2024 
 
SUBJECT: Preliminary Information 
  1310 Lake Road and 1235 Elm Tree Road 
 
 
The transfer of the property addressed as 1310 Lake Road and 1235 Elm Tree Road is pending.   
As described in the petitioner’s representative’s statement of intent, the property will be 
transferred to the children of the current owner of the property, in two separate ownerships.   
 
The property was originally part of a larger estate, the main house for the estate is located on the 
east side of Lake Road, at 1315 Lake Road.  The current owner of the property is a descendant of 
the original owner.  The family, including the current owner, has been a remarkable steward of 
this unique property, the historic structures, and the garden.  The new owners intend to continue 
the stewardship and desire to make some modifications to accommodate their intended use of the 
property in the short and longer term.    
 
Summary information on the history of the property is included in the Commission’s packet on 
the historic survey sheets from the City’s data base.     
 
The Challenge 
The property today is a single zoning lot, the property is in a single ownership and is used and 
was developed as a unit.  The fact that the property is comprised of three separate tax lots, does 
not override the definition of the property as single zoning lot.  The intended owners desire to 
recreate Lots 27 and 28 of the Original Lake Forest Plat of Subdivision as separate buildable 
parcels as reflected on the survey included in the Commission’s packet.  At some point in the 
past, a third parcel, L-shaped, was created from a portion of Lot 27 and extends along the south 
and west sides of that tax parcel.  However, to reiterate, tax parcels do not always align with 
zoning lots, a property that is owned, used, and developed singly.   
 
In order to transfer portions of the property into two separate ownerships, two separate buildable 
lots must be created from the single zoning lot.  The existing conditions on the property make 
this challenging. 
 

• The existing improvements span the entire property.  The property totals 
approximately 5.7 acres including the land area in the ravine.  The property is large 
enough to subdivide based on the minimum lot size of 60,000 square feet in the R-4 



zoning district.  However, there is no portion of the property that is unimproved that 
could be subdivided off of the larger whole. 

• Existing conditions on the site are not in conformance with the zoning and steep 
slope setbacks. 

• The existing structures exceed the allowable building square footage. 
• Currently, there is a single driveway.   
• There are significant historic structures and landscape features on the property and 

the property is considered contributing to the Historic District. 
• The Code requires a principal structure to support any improvements on a property.  

There is not a house on the east portion of the zoning lot.   
• In the short term, a new residence is not proposed on the east portion of the property 

however, the future owners have an interest in assuring that any newly created lot 
would be buildable in the future.    

 
To date, a determination has not been made on what types of approvals and variances might need 
to be considered in order to achieve the intended owners’ goals and to allow the single zoning lot 
to be recreated as two separate buildable lots.  Before providing direction to the petitioners on 
how to proceed, Commission questions and input is requested along with comments and 
questions from the public.  Following Commission input, further discussions will occur with the 
City Attorney on process and as appropriate, this matter will be returned to the Commission for a 
public hearing and action. 
 
At some point in the process, given the historic significance of the property, input from the 
Historic Preservation Commission may be warranted.  The Commission is asked to consider 
whether there is value in referring this discussion to the Historic Preservation Commission for 
early comment.        
 
 




































	1235 Elm Tree 1310 Lake Road 5.8.2024.pdf
	Zoning Map Update 5.8.2024.pdf
	SMSM-Copier24050313430.pdf
	zoningmap2019_update24x17_v4.pdf


